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Youth Workforce System Solicitation 

Questions and Answers 

This information may be edited for clarity 
 

July 21, 2017 

The inquiry period for this Solicitation is now closed. 

 

Q1 Is a cell phone purchase considered equipment, or is it a disallowed cost? 
A1 Without additional context around this question, here are some basic guidelines: 

• Cell phones are not equipment 

• A policy that allows for staff reimbursement of a reasonable amount for staff business use of a personal cell 
phone is an allowable operating expense; appropriate backup documentation is required. 

• Purchasing company cell phones in lieu of a land-line system and assigning them to staff as their business 
phone is an allowable operating expense. The agency must have a way to track the phone assignments and 
ensure its return to the agency for use by another staff person in the event of staff turnover. Appropriate backup 
documentation is required. 

 
Q2 Where should the Administrative Capacity Checklist and Response be signed, and by whom? 
A2 The Administrative Capacity Checklist does not have to be signed, but it does require your entity name at the top of 

the page.  The Administrative Response does not require a signature. 

 

July 19, 2017 

 

Q1 We have not yet identified the staff person who will be the Career Coach.  What should we enter into the Budget Narrative 
Workbook where it asks for Employee Name or Position ID Number? 

A1 If you use Position Identification numbers, you can enter that number even if the position is currently vacant.  If you 
only use Employee Names to identify positions, you can enter “To Be Determined” instead of a name.  

 

July 17, 2017 

 
Q1 In the RFP, the annualized cost per youth is stated to be $2,650.   Since the contract is for 9 months, should this be 

$1,987.50? 
A1 Respondents may submit a budget for either 9 months of funding or 12 months of funding.  If submitting for 9 

months, the cost per youth should represent 75% of the annualized cost. 

 
Q2 If my proposal includes the NW Promise funds, would teaching the Work Readiness Course be an allowable activity for the 

NW Promise Career Coach?  The course would include information about healthcare, but would touch on the other three 
sectors as well. 

A2 Yes, teaching the Work Readiness Course is an allowable activity for a Career Coach funded with NW Promise funds. 
 

Q3 Is there a more detailed version of roles and responsibilities for a SNAP-focused Career Coach?  It is unclear if there are 
additional expectations beyond managing eligibility. 

A3 Each respondent participating in the SNAP program would be expected to customize a Career Coach position 
description, depending upon the particular customers served and addressing any unique program elements of the 
services they would provide to SNAP recipients (such as Job Clubs, etc.). 

 
Q4 While we do not have a Federal Indirect Rate, we do have an indirect cost allocation plan. Will that be acceptable? 
A4 Yes, submit your current cost allocation plan.  If a Federally Approved Indirect Rate is issued for your agency prior to 

contract start date, it may be considered during negotiations. 

 

July 7, 2017 

 
Q1 Are supplementary materials such as tables and graphics formatted as attachments included in the overall page count? 
A1 Yes. Tables, charts, graphs, etc. are included in the page count. 

 

July 3, 2017 

 
Q1 Will there be shared outcomes with WorkSource since our youth (18+) will need to be co-enrolled? 
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A1 Outcomes that result from participation in WorkSource services will in some instances count toward youth 
contractor performance. However, contractors funded under this Solicitation will be wholly responsible for attaining 
their contracted performance goals. 

 
Q2 Regarding general outcomes for the grant, when will Worksystems expect programs to be meeting those? (It will take a 

considerable amount of time to ramp up for the new program.) 
A2 It is expected that contractors will begin meeting performance goals upon issuance of contracts. WIOA common 

measures account for program phases such as outreach and enrollment by applying performance measures at 
defined measurement points such as enrollment, program exit, and 12-month retention. 

 
Q3 What are the obligations of the .5 FTE Career Coach for NW Promise that we match?  Can the .5 FTE be a general Career 

Coach, or are we expected to then have 1.0 FTE dedicated solely to healthcare (assuming the intention is that Worksystems 
funds .5 FTE and programs are expected to match with an additional .5 FTE)?  Does the .5 FTE NW Promise position include 
half of the benefits cost of an assumed 1.0 FTE? 

A3 Funding is structured so that programs applying for NW Promise projects would receive NW Promise funding and an 
equal amount of WIOA funding as the match source, thus creating the 1.0 FTE.  The Career Coach would be 
dedicated solely to healthcare related services for youth on their caseload. NW Promise and WIOA funds may be 
used to pay for wages, benefits, and payroll costs for the FTE under contracts resulting from this Solicitation. 

 
Q4 What are the allowable services and costs included in Alternative Secondary school? 
A4 Any costs associated with Alternative Secondary school enrollment or services must be leveraged from other 

funding sources. The service definition under WIOA for Alternative Secondary instruction is, “A structured program 
that serve youth who have not been successful in mainstream ‘traditional’ academic programs and provide basic 
education skills training, individualized academic instruction, and English as a Second Language training”.  

 
Q5 Can a submission include a chart in 10-point font? 
A5 Yes. 

 

June 28, 2017 

 

A revised resource document entitled Budget Workbook – Youth System REVISED has replaced the previous Budget 
Workbook, and has been posted to the Solicitation website at http://www.worksystems.org/news-events/news/rfp-now-open-
youth-workforce-system. Please use this workbook for proposal submissions. 

 

Q1 If youth are in a non-bridge pre-apprenticeship program that they complete, does this count toward the 75% completion 
requirement? 

A1 Yes. Worksystems will maintain a process for authorizing additional trainings that count toward the completion 
requirement. 

 
Q2 If we apply for but are not awarded the NW Promise funding, are we still eligible for consideration for the general pool of 

funding?  And, are we only eligible for the NW Promise funding if we are awarded a Youth Workforce System contract? 
A2 Yes, if you apply for but are not awarded a special option for service delivery (including NW Promise and/or SNAP 

50/50), you remain eligible for consideration for funds designated for General Career Coaching. A revised Budget 
Workbook has been posted, which allows respondents to develop a budget for each project they are applying for.  
For example, if the respondent is applying for NW Promise and General Career Coaching, the Budget Workbook 
would be detailed with funding assigned to both projects, and will include Personnel, Operating, Participant Expense, 
and Indirect line item details.  Please use the Budget Workbook – Youth System REVISED posted with the Resource 
Documents for proposal submissions. 

 
Q3 Are we allowed to focus on more than one of the preferred industries, and up to all four of them? 
A3 The NW Promise projects will require awardees to focus exclusively on the healthcare sector.  Awardees not funded 

through NW Promise, including the General Career Coaching and SNAP 50/50 projects, can focus on all four target 
sectors identified in this Solicitation. 

 
Q4 If we apply for the NW Promise funding, must we focus our entire proposal on healthcare, or could we still apply for up to all 

four of the industries? 
A4 All services proposed to be funded through the NW Promise funds must be focused exclusively on the healthcare 

sector.  However, you may apply to provide services for up to all four industries in any portion of your proposal 
funded through the General Career Coaching or SNAP 50/50 funding. 

 

June 26, 2017 

 

http://www.worksystems.org/news-events/news/rfp-now-open-youth-workforce-system
http://www.worksystems.org/news-events/news/rfp-now-open-youth-workforce-system


 

1618 SW First Avenue, Suite 450  Portland, OR 97201  503.478.7300  503.478.7302 fax  www.worksystems.org 

Q1 Is the expectation of the NW Promise funds to just integrate healthcare activities with a healthcare curriculum, or will there be 
required activities? 

A1 NW Promise is aligned with the overarching program design of the Youth Workforce System Solicitation and 
generally does integrate healthcare activities.  Specifically, as a healthcare sector grant, NW Promise incorporates an 
exclusive focus on recruiting, training, and placing youth into the healthcare sector. Training and placement for NW 
Promise must be focused on five career pathways, including Healthcare Technology, Nursing, Medical Lab, Allied 
Health, and Medical Office.  Career Coaches funded under NW Promise must partner with WorkSource Portland Metro 
Centers who will issue Individual Training Account (ITA) scholarships for youths training in these areas.  These are 
required activities. 

 
 It should be noted that the US Department of Labor, the grant’s funder, has the right to require additional activities 

such as participation in program evaluation. Any such requirements will be passed on to service providers who are 
awarded NW Promise funds under this Solicitation. Worksystems may also adjust or add activities in the course of 
managing the overall performance and quality of services provided through this grant. 

 
Q2 In the forums before this Solicitation release, it was stated that 25% of the funds could be used to serve in-school youth; but 

the in-school youth are not listed in the Solicitation. How do we continue to support our current in-school youth that are 
enrolled in our WIOA program if none of the money can be used to support or incentivize them? 

A2 Contracts awarded as a result of this Solicitation will allow for up to 20% of youth enrolled into the new Youth 
Workforce System to be “in-school”, following WIOA rules.  Existing in-school youth who wish to continue to be 
involved in the new services funded via this Solicitation will not count under the 20% limit.  In-school youth who do 
not wish to continue to receive the services funded under this Solicitation are to be transitioned to follow up status. 

 
Q3 Is there a percentage of in-school and out-of-school youth to be served? If so, what is the percentage? 
A3 Please refer to Question and Answer 2, above. 

 

June 21, 2017  

 

A Demographic Plan Template resource document has been posted to the Solicitation website at 
http://www.worksystems.org/news-events/news/rfp-now-open-youth-workforce-system  

 
Q1 Will a youth be able to be co-enrolled in the Youth Workforce System as well as the A Home for Everyone program? 
A1 Worksystems regards all career coaching contracts we issue for serving participants defined as “youth” to be part of 

the youth workforce system. Therefore, it’s important to clarify that the AHFE-funded contract currently issued by 
Worksystems to POIC will be considered a component of the youth workforce system, as will any future AHFE or 
other source-funded career coaching contracts serving youth be considered part of the youth workforce system. 

 
 Dual enrollment between different funding sources within the youth system: In some situations, dual enrollment 

between career coaching contracts may be permitted.  For instance, a youth served by an AHFE-funded career 
coaching contract may also benefit from enrollment in a NW Promise-funded career coaching contract issued under 
this Solicitation because of the enhanced focus on healthcare sector training and employment that would be added 
through participation in NW Promise.  However, other instances of dual enrollment between career coaching 
contracts funded by Worksystems may not be permitted. Guidance regarding dual enrollment in career coaching 
contracts will be issued on the basis that considers each project’s funding source and program focus.  However, due 
to the possibility that dual enrollment will not be supported for specific projects, respondents should not develop a 
response that is predicated on or necessitates enrolling youth in both AHFE and career coaching contracts funded 
under this Solicitation. 

 
Q2 Please clarify the requirements for submitting the demographic plan referenced on page 13 of the Request for Proposals. 
A2 A Demographic Plan Template resource document has been posted to the Solicitation website.  Please submit your 

demographic plan using this form. 

 
Q3 Is the expectation that each Career Coach will serve 30-40 unduplicated youth per year, or is it 30-40 youth at any given time, 

and the Career Coach may serve more youth per year as the youth complete the program and enter employment? 
A3 Career Coaches are expected to maintain a caseload of 30-40 youth throughout the year, so more than 40 youth may 

be served by a single coach in a year, as youth finish the program and new youth are enrolled. 

 
Q4 There are two new curricula to be delivered by the Career Coaches: New World of Work 21st Century Skills and a financial 

literacy curriculum.  Can you provide an estimate of how many hours and/or weeks of instruction will each of the curricula 
require? 

A4 Depending upon the instructor’s choices provided by the curriculum, the number of interactive activities, and 
discussion time, it will take approximately 15-20 hours to facilitate the 10 selected competencies in New World of 

http://www.worksystems.org/news-events/news/rfp-now-open-youth-workforce-system
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Work 21st Century Skills.  The financial literacy curriculum will be provided by Everfi, which uses independent 
learning through online modules. It will take a youth approximately 35 minutes to complete the 7 required modules. 

 
Q5 Can Job Corps entry be considered placement in post-secondary training?  Does a Job Corps credential equal an industry 

recognized credential? 
A5 Job Corps counts toward placement measures.  If the credential awarded by Job Corps meet the WIOA criteria, it can 

count as an industry recognized credential. 

 
Q6 Is the Career Coach funded through the SNAP 50/50 program and thus dedicated to delivering SNAP 50/50 services to 

eligible young people considered sufficient to meet the SNAP 50/50 requirements, or are additional service enhancements 
required? 

A6 Based on guidance from the Oregon Department of Human Services, a dedicated SNAP 50/50 Career Coach who 
serves only SNAP 50/50 participants meets the enhanced requirement.  If this guidance changes, it may be necessary 
to provide additional services to SNAP 50/50 participants in order to remain in compliance with the new guidance. 

 
Q7 Does the Northwest Promise requirement to “integrate a healthcare focus across services and phases” mean that a healthcare 

focus needs to be integrated across services for all youth participants, or only for those served by the dedicated Northwest 
Promise Career Coach?  Does being part of the Northwest Promise grant mean that activities for the entire program we offer 
would be limited to focusing on healthcare? 

A7 Services delivered to youth participants by staff funded under the Northwest Promise funds and the matching WIOA 
formula funds must be healthcare focused.  It is possible that a contract awarded through this Solicitation could have 
both healthcare and non-healthcare focused career coaches. 

 
 
Q8 Will there be a bidder’s conference for this Solicitation? 
A8 We will not be holding a bidder’s conference.  Rather, we held a pre-bidder’s conference prior to the release of the 

Solicitation so that we could factor input from prospective bidders into the program design. 


